
 

 

Agenda 

 
 
 

Committee Administrator:     Democratic Services Officer  (01609 767015) 
 

Tuesday, 7 April 2020 
 
 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
Notice of Meeting 
 
Meeting Council 

 
Date Friday, 17 April 2020 

 
Time 2.00 pm 

 
Venue This meeting will be held virtually via a telephone conference call 

(Please see joining instructions below) 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

J. Ives. 

 
Dr Justin Ives 
Chief Executive 
 
 
To:  All Members of Hambleton District Council 
 
Note: Owing to the recent Covid-19 pandemic and government guidance issued to stay at 
home, it will not be possible to hold this meeting in person.  The Council has therefore made 
arrangements under the Coronavirus Act 2020, and subsequent Regulations permitting 
remote meetings, to hold the hearing virtually via a telephone conference call.  Please dial the 
following telephone number: 0844 4 73 73 73 and enter the pin code 344508 followed by #.  If 
calling from a mobile, please call 87373 followed by the pin code 344508 followed by #.  State 
your name when prompted.   
 
If you are a member of the public, who would like to listen to the meeting, you may do so by 
calling: 0844 4 73 73 73 and entering the code 344508 followed by #.  If calling from a mobile, 
please call 87373 followed by the pin code 344508 followed by #. You will not be able to 
speak or participate in the meeting, only listen.

Public Document Pack



Agenda 
 
  Page No 

 
1.  Apologies for Absence  

 
 

 
2.  Delegation of Functions in Emergency Situations  

 
1 - 6 

 
 Report of the Chief Executive 

 
 

 
 



Hambleton District Council 
 
Report To: Council 
 
Date: 17 April 2020 
 
From: Chief Executive 
 
Subject: Delegation of Functions in Emergency Situations 
 
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 
 
1.0 Purpose and Background 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek the Council’s approval, in emergency situations 

only, for the delegation of Council and Committee functions to the Chief Executive, 
and in the event that the Chief Executive is unavailable (or declares an interest in 
any decision to be made) to the Deputy Chief Executive.    

 
1.2 The nation is facing an unprecedented peacetime emergency.  Restrictions have 

been placed on day to day activities to combat the Coronavirus pandemic.  In 
compliance with Government guidance on this issue, the Council is requiring staff to 
work from home where their attendance at work is not absolutely necessary, and is 
discouraging Members (particularly those who may be deemed ‘at-risk’) from 
attending the Council’s offices.  As a consequence, Council, Cabinet and 
Committee meetings have been postponed for the present, although that position is 
constantly under review.     

 
1.3 The Council’s non-executive functions are discharged by the full Council or by its 

Committees, namely the Planning Committee, the Licensing Committee (and its 
Licensing and Appeals Hearings Panel), the Audit Governance and Standards 
Committee (and its Standards Hearings Panel), the Scrutiny Committee, the 
Investigations and Disciplinary Committee and the Appeals Committee.  Decisions 
are usually made by the majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.  
Executive functions are discharged by the Leader and Cabinet.  These executive 
functions have already been delegated (in emergency situations only) to the Chief 
Executive. 

  
1.4 The Coronavirus Act 2020 received royal assent on 25 March 2020.  There is 

provision under the Act (section 78) for the Secretary of State to implement 
provisions by regulation relating to, amongst other things, the postponement of 
Annual Council and the ability of Members to attend meetings remotely and to vote 
on items of business.  Regulations introducing these provisions were enacted on 
4 April 2020. 

 
1.5 It is important for the economic, community and environmental well-being of the 

Council’s area that timely decisions continue to be made even in times of 
emergency. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



1.6 Although remote participation is permitted by the Regulations, there are still 
technical challenges to overcome to make remote meetings work and to make it 
practical for all Members to use.  For example, a remote decision taken by the 
Planning Committee could be open to challenge if it came to light that, as a result of 
a problem with the technology, not all Members who voted had followed the full 
debate at the meeting, thus resulting in a failure to consider all material planning 
considerations.  Similarly, from a practical perspective, it may difficult to manage a 
Planning Committee effectively given the interactive nature of such meetings. 

 
1.7 In order for the Council to be flexible enough to make decisions quickly to support 

the provision of public services, therefore, it is proposed in emergency situations to 
delegate Council and Committee functions to the Chief Executive, and if the Chief 
Executive is unavailable to the Deputy Chief Executive.  The specific form of 
delegations is set out below.  These provisions will allow proper decision making to 
continue, provide public accountability through appropriate Member consultation 
and, just as important, allow the Council to react to changing circumstances 
throughout this emergency, whilst complying as far as possible with Government 
guidance on self-isolation and household isolation.  The arrangements would only 
last for the period of any emergency and the use of the delegated powers would be 
terminated as soon as reasonably practicable. 

 
1.8 The Council’s current Scheme of Officer Delegation permits the Chief Executive, 

Deputy Chief Executive and Directors to authorise urgent action (in consultation 
with the Leader) not covered by the scheme of delegation and which requires an 
urgent decision.  It also provides for officers to make a number of more general 
decisions, for example, delegated decisions on certain planning applications.  
However, it is considered that these powers are not wide enough to cover ongoing 
situations arising from the Coronavirus pandemic, or indeed any other emergency 
situation, nor do they authorise officers in emergency situations to make the full 
range of decisions which might be necessary or desirable. 

 
1.9 In the circumstances, to the extent they are permitted by law the following 

delegations are proposed: 
 
 Council 
 
1.9.1 A delegation is proposed: 
 
 That in cases of emergency authority be delegated to the Chief Executive, and in 

the event that the Chief Executive is unavailable (or declares an interest in any 
decision to be made) to the Deputy Chief Executive, to take any decision that would 
otherwise have been decided at a meeting of Council.  As far as emergency 
situations allow the Leader of the Council will be consulted before any decision is 
taken under this delegated authority. 

 
  

Page 2



 Planning Committee  
 
1.9.2 A delegation is proposed: 
 
 That authority be delegated in cases of emergency to the Chief Executive and in the 

event that the Chief Executive is unavailable (or declares an interest in any decision 
to be made) to the Deputy Chief Executive (or to any other officer authorised in 
writing by the Chief Executive or Deputy Chief Executive) to determine any matter 
that would otherwise have been decided at a meeting of the Planning Committee.  
As far as emergency situations allow the Chairman of the Planning Committee, or in 
their absence the Vice-Chairman, will be consulted before any decision is taken 
under this delegated authority. 

 
 Licensing Committee 
 
1.9.3 No delegation is proposed as there are legal limitations that prevent a number of 

licensing matters from being delegated to officers. 
 
 Licensing and Appeals Hearings Panel 
 
1.9.4 A delegation is proposed: 
 
 That authority be delegated in cases of emergency to the Chief Executive and in the 

event that the Chief Executive is unavailable (or declares an interest in any decision 
to be made) to the Deputy Chief Executive (or to any other officer authorised in 
writing by the Chief Executive or Deputy Chief Executive) to determine any matter 
that would otherwise have been decided at a meeting of the Licensing and Appeals 
Hearings Panel, unless specifically prohibited by law.  As far as emergency 
situations allow the Chairman of the Licensing Committee, or in their absence the 
Vice-Chairman, will be consulted before any decision is taken under this delegated 
authority. 

  
 Audit Governance and Standards Committee 
 
1.9.5 A delegation is proposed: 
 
 That authority be delegated in cases of emergency to the Chief Executive and in the 

event that the Chief Executive is unavailable (or declares an interest in any decision 
to be made) to the Deputy Chief Executive (or to any other officer authorised in 
writing by the Chief Executive or Deputy Chief Executive) to approve the annual 
internal audit plan.  As far as emergency situations allow the Chairman of the Audit 
Governance and Standards Committee, or in their absence the Vice-Chairman, will 
be consulted before any decision is taken under this delegated authority. 

 
 Standards Hearings Panel 
 
1.9.6 No delegation is proposed as it is considered that in times of emergency these 

matters could be postponed. 
 
  

Page 3



 Investigations and Disciplinary Committee 
 
1.9.7 No delegation to officers is proposed as it would not be appropriate given the role of 

the Committee. 
 
 Appeals Committee 
 
1.9.8 No delegation to officers is proposed as it would not be appropriate given the role of 

the Committee. 
  
 Scrutiny Committee 
 
1.9.9 No delegation is proposed.  There is already provision in the Constitution to override 

‘call-in’ procedures where an executive decision being taken is considered urgent, 
and any delay caused by the ‘call-in’ process would seriously prejudice the 
Council’s or the public’s interests. 

 
2.0 Link to Council Priorities 
 
2.1 Appropriate and timely decision making supports all of the Council’s priorities.  This 

is particularly the case in emergency situations. 
 
3.0 Risk Assessment 
 
3.1 There are no significant risks associated with the report. 
 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 provides (subject to any express 

provision contained in the 1972 Act or any other Act passed after the 1972 Act) that 
local authorities may arrange for the discharge of any of their functions by 
Committee, Sub-Committee or an officer of the Authority. 

 
5.2 The delegations sought in this report do not remove the power to make these 

decisions from the Council and its Committees; it merely provides authority for the 
officers named to do so in emergency situations. 

 
6.0 Equalities and Diversity Issues 
 
6.1 There are no equality and diversity issues associated with this report. 

 
  

Page 4



7.0 Recommendations 
 
7.1 It is recommended that Council approves and authorises that:- 
 

(1) in cases of emergency, authority be delegated to the Chief Executive, and in 
the event that the Chief Executive is unavailable (or declares an interest in 
any decision to be made) to the Deputy Chief Executive, to take any decision 
that would otherwise have been decided at a meeting of Council.  As far as 
emergency situations allow the Leader of the Council shall be consulted 
before any decision is taken under this delegated authority; 

 
(2) in relation to the Planning Committee, the Audit Governance and Standards 

Committee and the Licensing and Appeals Hearings Panel, authority be 
delegated in cases of emergency to the Chief Executive and in the event that 
the Chief Executive is unavailable (or declares an interest in any decision to 
be made) to the Deputy Chief Executive (or to any other officer authorised in 
writing by the Chief Executive or Deputy Chief Executive), to take any 
decisions that would otherwise have been decided by the relevant 
Committee or Panel, unless specifically prohibited by law.  As far as 
emergency situations allow the respective Chairman of the Planning 
Committee, the Chairman of the Audit Governance and Standards 
Committee, and the Chairman of the Licensing Committee (or in their 
absences the respective Vice-Chairmen) shall be consulted before any 
decisions are taken under this delegated authority; 

 
(3) the Chief Executive keeps under review (in consultation with the Leader) the 

need for these emergency delegations and terminates their use as soon as 
reasonably practicable; and 

 
(4) the Director of Law and Governance make the consequential amendments to 

the Scheme of Officer Delegation set out in the Council’s Constitution. 
 
 
 
 
Dr Justin Ives 
Chief Executive 
 
Background papers: None  
 
Author ref: GN  
 
Contact: Gary Nelson 
  Director of Law and Governance 
  (01609) 767012 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Delegation of Functions in Emergency Situations

